



















































Page 1 of 3

AGENDA 
Meeting of the Niagara Falls Water Board 

December 14, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 
***Meeting to be held via conference call pursuant to  

Executive Order 202.1 as extended by 202.79 – visit NFWB.org for call-in details.***  

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters 

a. Brown ___ Forster ___ Larkin ___ Leffler ___ Kimble ___ 

b. Letters and Communications 

c. Public Comment (Public comments may be submitted in writing to be read 
by the Secretary and must be received by 12:00 p.m. on December 14, 2020.  
Comments may be summarized when read.  Email comments to 
scostello@NFWB.org or mail c/o Sean W. Costello, 5815 Buffalo Ave., 
Niagara Falls, NY 14304) 

d. Approval of Minutes from November 23, 2020 Meeting 

2. Executive Director  

a. WWTP Project Budget Tracker (CPL)   
b. WWTP Construction Schedule Tracker (CPL)   
c. Financial Award Summary (CPL) 

3. Superintendent  

4. Engineering 

5. Personnel Items 

6. Information Technology (IT) 



Page 2 of 3

7. Finance 

a. Rate Consultant Presentation 
b. 2021 Budget 
c. Bank Balance Report 
d. Budget Performance Report as of November 30, 2020 
e. Budget Transfers 
f. Capital Improvement Plan Tracking (Spreadsheet not part of packet) 
g. Payroll-Based Overtime Log 
h. 2021 Budget Preparation and Financial Report Calendar 

8. Questions Regarding November 2020 Operations and Maintenance Report 

9. Safety 

10.  General Counsel and Secretary 

11.  From the Chairman 

12.  Resolutions  

2020-12-001 – 2021 WATER BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 
a. 2021 Board Meeting Dates 

2020-12-002 – ANNUAL REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT POLICY AND ADOPTION OF 
REVISED POLICY 

a. Clean Copy of Proposed Revised Policy 
b. Track Changes Showing Proposed Revisions 

2020-12-003 – CHANGE ORDER 1 AND FINAL FOR 24 INCH VALVE 
REPLACEMENT AT HYDE PARK BOULEVARD AND WESTON AVENUE 

a. Memorandum Regarding Change Order 

2020-12-004 – ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES 

2020-12-005 – RESIGNATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PATRICK FAMA 
a. December 9, 2020 Correspondence from P. Fama to Board 



Page 3 of 3

13. Unfinished/Old Business  

a. Beech Ave. Water Tank Information 
b. Correspondence from City Regarding PILOT 

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

15. Executive Session (if needed) 

16. Adjournment of Meeting  



Page 1 of 8

MINUTES 

Meeting of the Niagara Falls Water Board 
November 23, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 

Note: This Meeting was held via conference call pursuant to  
Executive Order 202.1 as extended by 202.72. 

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters 
a. Brown __P__ Forster __P__ Larkin __P__ Leffler __P__  

Kimble __A [Joined at 5:09 p.m.]__ 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

b. Letters and Communications 

Mr. Costello noted that there were no letters or communications to discuss at this time.  

c. Public Comment (Public comments may be submitted in writing to be read 
by the Secretary and must be received by 12:00 p.m. on November 23, 2020.  
Comments may be summarized when read.  Email comments to 
scostello@NFWB.org or mail c/o Sean W. Costello, 5815 Buffalo Ave., 
Niagara Falls, NY 14304) 

Mr. Costello noted that Sean Spicer submitted a public comment relative to 2710 Pierce Ave.                
and is seeking a refund or credit equal to $583.29 relative to a high bill in September. Gross 
plumbing came to Mr. Spicer’s residence to check for leaks and dye tested the toilet but no 
leaks were found.. Mr. Spicer’s next water bill was $114.  Mr. Spicer questions how a leak 
could repair itself and notes that his water meter still is flashing to indicate a leak.  He 
suspects the water meter electronics are faulty or the meter was misread.  Ms. Walker states 
that an adjustment was given to Mr. Spicer per Water Board policy – Mr. Spicer did not think 
the adjustment that was given was substantial enough given the circumstances.  The meter 
shop removed and tested the meter, and it is functioning properly.  The $100 meter testing fee 
was waived.  In total the Water Board has adjusted $127 for Mr. Spicer.  Mr. Spicer states it 
cost him $100 for plumber services and he also received a $27 late fee. Mr. Spicer has since 
paid his water bill in full and asks that the board consider an additional adjustment.  



Page 2 of 8

d. Approval of Minutes from October 26, 2020 Meeting 

Motion by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve the October 26, 2020 meeting 
minutes. 

Brown__Y__Forster__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__Kimble__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 

2. Executive Director  

a. WWTP Project Budget Tracker (CPL)   
b. WWTP Construction Schedule Tracker (CPL)   
c. Financial Award Summary (CPL) 

Ted Donner from CPL reviewed the status of the ongoing capital projects at the WWTP, 
having provided written project status updates that were included in the Board’s agenda 
packets. 

Mr. Donner states that despite the delays due to Covid-19, he is pleased to report that most of 
the capital projects are now in the construction phase and/or nearing completion. 
Additionally, capital work continues to track well under the CIP budget, allowing for 
additional work as needed.  

Mr. Forster requests an update on the FEMA project. 

Mr. Donner states that Mr. Williamson has been working with GHD on this project and CPL 
has not has any involvement, but he is aware they are looking into some potential solutions to 
utilize the grant funding.  

Mr. Williamson states he had a conference call with GHD earlier this month to discuss their 
redesign concept; better cost-to-benefit ratio. GHD is drafting a design memo with cost 
estimates that will be given to the NFWB by November 30, 2020 that should be available for 
the December work session.  

Seth Krull from CPL reviewed the financial award summary with the board members. 

Mr. Forster questions the status of the WWTP project budget tracker as well as the WWTP 
construction schedule tracker. Mr. Forster would also like any potential cost overruns to be 
identified. Mr. Forster understands that a matrix has been provided – but states that it is just a 
bunch of numbers to the board members.  

Mr. Donner explains that CPL has tracked the separate authorizations that have gone through 
for each capital project. Mr. Donner refers to the Capital Project Budget Summary and 
identifies the amounts identified in green indicate projects that are currently under budget, 
versus the amounts identified in red are currently over budget.  



Page 3 of 8

Mr. Forster asks if CPL is also handling the RFP for sludge hauling. 

Jay Meyers from CPL states that he has a walk-through at the WWTP scheduled with all the 
consultants tomorrow (11/24/2020) at 9:30 a.m. 

Mr. Meyers states that the RFP is to be returned by December 21, 2020. 

3. Superintendent  

Mr. Wright states that he is working with Mr. Eagler (Supervisor of Outside Maintenance), 
Mr. Janzen (Senior Engineering System Technician) and Mr. Rowe (WTP Chief Operator) to 
draft an RFP for smart leak detection services. Once the RFP is drafted, Mr. Wright states he 
will send it to Mr. Fama and Mr. Costello for review, prior to seeking proposals.  

Mr. Forster states that as encouraging as that sounds, it has been reported from the NFWB 
that 71% of our water is unaccounted for. Mr. Forster mentions that he looks forward to an 
updated report on the RFP for a leak detection program that would provide early leak 
detection throughout the city. 

Mr. Forster also seeks an update regarding the 18th St. water main slip line between 
Whitney Ave. and Ontario Ave.  

Mr. Wright met with Mr. Buzzelli from City Engineering last week and was notified that the 
next step in the process is to seek approval from the County, then it will go out to bid. 

Mr. Forster states that he received correspondence from Mayor Restaino and the City 
Administrator regarding the NFWB’s assistance with the large fire that took place at Cascades 
Packaging on November 20, 2020. Mayor Restaino and the City Administrator could not have 
been more pleased with the outside crew’s response and their assistance with traffic control.  

4. Engineering 

Mr. Williamson states that under the Military Road reconstruction project, Urban 
Engineering will be including the replacement of the watermain along Military Road from 
Cayuga Drive to Bollier Avenue. The engineering work will be performed for the City of 
Niagara Falls with no cost to the NFWB. There will be a substantial cost savings due to the 
restoration work associated with the waterline replacement work that will be included in the 
Military Road Reconstruction project.

Mr. Forster references his question from the October 2020 board meeting regarding Urban 
Engineering who was retained by the City, with the scope of their work to reconstruct Military 
Road. Mr. Forster is seeking clarification if there will be grant funding available to replace 
that waterline. 



Page 4 of 8

Mr. Williamson states that the NFWB has already applied for and been awarded that grant.  
60% of the waterline construction costs will be covered under the 2018 NYS EFC WIIA grant 
the NFWB received.

Mr. Forster states that great strides have been made with the outside sewer/water crew and 
without any objection from the other board members, he would like to see the NFWB’s outside 
crew replace that watermain and would like clarification as to whether or not the NFWB 
would be able to be directly reimbursed directly from those grant funds if we were to complete 
our own work. 

Mr. Krull from CPL states that the NFWB can be directly reimbursed. 

Mr. Forster asks that Mr. Fama along with staff members that he sees fit convene a meeting to 
evaluate the possibility of our outside crew completing that work with the potential inclusion 
of a project manager and equipment rentals if needed. Chairperson Brown agrees. 

Mr. Fama states that he will review the scope of the work, convene a meeting and report back 
to the board.  

5. Personnel Items 

a. November 23, 2020 Personnel Actions and Reports  

Mr. Fama states that the NFWB’s Safety Specialist has accepted another position and he is 
seeking board approval to fill that position as soon as possible. 

Ms. Larkin questions the process of filling that position since in the past that position has been 
partially funded by the City and is inquiring if the funding will remain available. 

Mr. Fama states that he plans to speak with Mr. Accardo and ask that he contact the City for 
further clarification regarding the funding for the Safety Specialist position. 

Ms. Senia states that much of the Safety Specialist’s attention needs to be paid to the 
WTP/WWTP.  

Mr. Brown inquires the percentage split for funding the Safety Specialist position between the 
City and the NFWB. 

Ms. Walker states that the NFWB contributes 40% and the City of Niagara Falls contributes 
60% of the funding. 



Page 5 of 8

6. Information Technology (IT) 

Mr. Fama notes that the New World project is progressing into the testing phase this week. 
The NFWB has a tentative date between December 7 and 14 for the project to “go live.”  

7. Finance 

a. 2021 Budget 

Mr. Brown suggests postponing the budget discussion for further detailed discussion at the 
December 7 work session due to the inability to properly review the information that was 
provided based on the date when the board members received this information.  Mr. Brown 
had hoped that the board members would have been engaged in the budget discussion much 
sooner than they were and still is waiting on some previously requested information regarding 
projections for the 2020 budget.  Ms. Larkin agrees. 

Mr. Costello notes that if a rate increase is necessary, the public hearing for a potential rate 
increase must be published in the paper not fewer than 10 days prior to the public hearing. 

Mr. Brown states the board received the budget information very late will not be pushed to 
adopt a budget with rate increases prior to the end of the year if the Board is not provided the 
information and time needed to evaluate the budget.   

8. Questions Regarding October 2020 Operations and Maintenance Report 

No questions were asked. 

9. Safety 

Ms. Senia, attending her last meeting, was thanked for her service to the NFWB. 

10.  General Counsel and Secretary 

a. April 14, 2019 Lightning Strike Insurance Claim Update 

Mr. Costello provided an update on this claim, which now is nearly complete and totals 
approximately $635,000. 

11.  From the Chairman 

Mr. Brown states he has nothing new.



Page 6 of 8

12.  Resolutions  

2020-11-001 – MEMBERSHIP IN WNY STORMWATER COALITION 
a. Memorandum of Agreement 

Motion by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Leffler to approve  

Brown__Y__Forster__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__Kimble__A [connection issue]__ 

Motion carried, 4-0, with one absence. 

2020-11-002 – 2021 CLARK PATTERSON LEE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
EXTENSION 

a. October 27, 2020 Proposal 

Motion by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  

Brown__Y__Forster__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__Kimble__A [connection issue]__ 

Motion carried, 4-0, with one absence. 

2020-11-003 – AWARDING 2021 COOPERATIVE CHEMICAL BID 
a. November 9, 2020 Memorandum Recommending Awards 

Motion by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Leffler to approve  

Brown__Y__Forster__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__Kimble__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 

2020-11-004 – DIRECTING PREPARATION OF 2021 BUDGET AND FINANCIAL 
REPORT CALENDAR 

Motion by Mr. Forster and seconded by Mr. Brown to approve  

Brown__Y__Forster__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__Kimble__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0. 



Page 7 of 8

13. Unfinished/Old Business  

Mr. Brown asked for an update on the meeting with Bank on Buffalo and the banking RFP.  
Ms. Walker stated that some issues were resolved, and staff does not want to change banks 
because of the associated logistics and public perception issues.  For past issues with the 
Bank, there is nothing the Water Board can do about the vendor the Bank uses for payments, 
and there now is a greater understanding why cash payments are not accepted. 

Mr. Forster inquired about the July letter from the City Administrator regarding the PILOT 
and asked Ms. Walker if there is anything in writing regarding her questions to the State 
Comptroller that she wanted answered before responding.  Ms. Walker said she spoke with 
someone and is not sure what she has in writing. 

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

Mr. Forster asked about the status of payroll certification.  Mr. Fama will ask Mr. Accardo to 
address this with Civil Service. 

15. Executive Session (anticipated) 

a. Public Officers Law § 105 (f), “matters leading to the appointment, 
employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or 
removal of a particular person.” 

Motion by Mr. Forster and seconded by Mr. Brown to enter executive session at 6:13 p.m. to 
discuss matters possibly leading to the demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or removal 
of particular persons. 

Brown__Y__Forster__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__Kimble__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 

Mr. Costello explained for the public that was present on the call that when the Board enters 
executive session, they will be exited out of the call but can dial right back in to be present 
when the Board returns from executive session. 

Whereupon, a five-minute break was taken prior to beginning the executive session.



Page 8 of 8

Motion by Ms. Larkin and seconded by Mr. Forster to exit executive session and enter back 
into the open meeting at 7:10 p.m. 

Brown__Y__Forster__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__Kimble__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 

16. Adjournment of Meeting  

Motion by Ms. Larkin and seconded by Mr. Forster to adjourn at 7:11 p.m. 

Brown__Y__Forster__Y__Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__Kimble__Y__ 

Motion carried, 5-0 





























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
[4

2]

N
F

W
B

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
 

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

#
#

U
pd

a
te

d
: 

(1
2

-1
-2

0
)

T
A

S
K

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
S

T
A

R
T

P
L

A
N

E
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D

P
ro

je
ct

 #
1:

 S
ed

im
en

ta
ti

o
n

 B
as

in
 U

p
g

ra
d

es
 (

C
P

L
) 

- 
C

A
/C

I 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 (
10

-2
6-

20
)

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

B
id

di
ng

5/
22

/2
01

9
10

/1
/2

02
0

M
ob

ili
za

tio
n

 
11

/1
/2

0
20

2/
1/

20
21

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(P

ha
se

 1
)

3
/1

/2
02

1
11

/3
0/

20
21

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(P

ha
se

 2
)

3
/1

/2
02

2
11

/3
0/

20
22

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(P

ha
se

 3
)

3
/1

/2
02

3
11

/3
0/

20
23

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(P

ha
se

 4
)

3
/1

/2
02

4
11

/3
0/

20
24

P
ro

je
ct

 #
2 

G
o

rg
e 

P
u

m
p

in
g

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

eh
a

b
 (

G
H

D
) 

- 
C

A
/C

I 
S

er
vi

c
es

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 (
12

-1
6-

19
)

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

B
id

di
ng

6
/3

/2
01

9
6/

2
7/

20
20

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
7

/1
/2

02
0

10
/1

/2
02

1
P

ro
je

ct
 #

3 
S

cr
ee

n
s 

an
d

 G
ri

t 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 (

A
rc

ad
is

) 
- 

C
A

/C
I 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 (

10
-2

6-
20

)
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
B

id
di

ng
5/

30
/2

01
9

10
/1

/2
02

0
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

11
/1

/2
0

20
6/

1/
20

21
P

ro
je

ct
 #

4 
A

c
ti

va
te

d
 C

ar
b

o
n

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
(A

E
C

O
M

) 
- 

 C
A

/C
I S

er
vi

c
es

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 (
11

-2
5-

19
)

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

B
id

di
ng

5/
22

/2
01

9
2/

2
2/

20
20

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
3

/1
/2

02
0

9/
1/

20
20

P
ro

je
ct

 #
5 

E
le

ct
ri

c
al

 S
ys

te
m

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 (

E
I 

T
ea

m
) 

- 
C

A
/C

I 
S

er
vi

ce
s

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 (
9-

28
-2

0
)

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

B
id

di
ng

4/
25

/2
01

9
10

/1
/2

02
0

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
11

/1
/2

0
20

3/
1/

20
21

P
ro

je
ct

 #
6 

E
ff

lu
en

t 
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n

 (
A

E
C

O
M

) 
- 

C
A

 S
e

rv
ic

es
 (

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 P
re

vi
o

u
sl

y)
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
B

id
di

ng
6/

25
/2

01
9

2/
1/

20
20

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
3

/1
/2

02
0

2/
1/

20
21

P
ro

je
ct

 #
7 

H
V

A
C

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 (
E

I T
ea

m
) 

- 
C

A
/C

I 
S

er
vi

ce
s

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 (
9-

28
-2

0
)

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

B
id

di
ng

4/
25

/2
01

9
12

/1
/2

02
0

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
1

/1
/2

02
1

5/
1/

20
21

P
ro

je
ct

 #
8 

R
ep

la
c

em
en

t 
o

f 
B

lo
w

er
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
(I

n
 H

o
u

se
) 

- 
C

A
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

b
y 

A
E

C
O

M
 a

n
d

 C
P

L
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
B

id
di

ng
2

/1
/2

01
9

6/
1/

20
19

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
7

/1
/2

01
9

2/
1/

20
20

P
ro

je
ct

 #
9 

R
ep

la
c

em
en

t 
o

f 
P

ro
ce

ss
 P

ip
in

g
 (

JM
D

) 
- 

C
A

/C
I 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

p
p

ro
v

ed
 (

9-
28

-2
0)

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

B
id

di
ng

10
/2

6/
20

19
3/

2
6/

20
21

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
4

/1
/2

02
1

9/
1/

20
21

P
ro

je
ct

 #
10

 S
C

A
D

A
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 (

K
am

an
) 

- 
C

A
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
o

t 
R

eq
u

ir
e

d
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
B

id
di

ng
6

/1
/2

01
9

12
/1

/2
01

9
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

1
/1

/2
02

0
11

/1
/2

02
4

P
ro

je
ct

 #
11

 W
W

T
P

 A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

P
ip

in
g

 (
JM

D
) 

C
A

/C
I S

er
vi

c
es

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 (
9

-2
8-

2
0

)
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
B

id
di

ng
10

/1
/2

0
19

3/
2

6/
20

21
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

4
/1

/2
02

1
9/

1/
20

21
P

ro
je

ct
 #

99
 W

W
T

P
 P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
M

e
as

u
re

s
 -

 P
ro

je
ct

 o
n

 H
o

ld
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

B
id

di
ng

1
/1

/2
01

9
7/

1/
20

20
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

8
/1

/2
02

0
6/

1/
20

21
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D
J

F
M

A
M

J
J

A
S

O
N

D

2
02

4
2

01
9

2
02

0
20

2
1

2
0

23
20

22









 
FINANCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT  

BANK ACCOUNT BALANCES (Ending 10/31/2020) 
 

BANK on BUFFALO 
TREASURY INVESTMENT RECONCILIATION 

 

MONTH STARTING VALUE ENDING VALUE CHANGE IN VALUE 
Jan 2020 21,587,819.76 21,632,403.94 44,584.18 
Feb 2020 21,632,403.94 21,678,437.43 46,033.49 
Mar 2020 21,678,437,.43 21,793,908.42 115,470.99 
April 2020 21,793,908.42 21,792,858.07 (1,050.32) 
May 2020 21,792,858.07 21,811,712.29 18,854.22 
June 2020 21,811,712.29 21,837,254.67 25,542.38 
July 2020 21,837,254.67 21,858,748.94 21,494.27 
Aug 2020 21,858,748.94 21,871,514.43 12,765.49 
Sep 2020 21,871,514.43 21,882,095.03 10,580.60 
*Oct 2020 21,882,095.03 17,553,053.73 (4,329,041.30) 
Nov 2020    
Dec 2020    

*Transfer to Capital Construction                                                                                                

 

 BANK on BUFFALO  
  OPERATING ACCOUNTS 

ACCOUNT NAME ACCOUNT 
NO. 

ENDING 
10/31/2020 

ENDING 
11/30/2020 

ENDING 
12/31/2020 

Board Expense X4873 91,624.82   
O & M Reserve X4881 3,528,792.08   
Depository Account X4899 3,990,903.10   
Payroll X4906 104,235.06   
Benefits X4914 14,126.50   
Operating Account X0643 1,785,680.31   
Grant Funds X4445 1.00   

                                                            $9,515,362.87        

 

 
   

 

 

 

 







 

WILMINGTON TRUST ( M&T Bank ) 
Ending Balances 

 

ACCOUNT NAME 
 

10/31/2020 11/30/2020 12/31/2020 

Debt Service Fund X3250 
 

$5,537,231.85   

Debt Service Reserve 
X3252 
 

$8,683,066.81   

Construction Fund X2722 
 

Opening Value:  
$153,160.52 
 
Contributions & 
Withdrawals:  
$3,358,011.90 
 
Ending balance: 
$3,511,172.42 
 

  

 

 









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page 1 of 2

2021 NFWB Budget Preparation  
and Financial Report Calendar  

Due Date: 
Preliminary Budget 

 Budget worksheets distributed to division heads. 3rd week July 2021 

 Budget worksheets due. 2nd week Aug 2021 

 Budget meetings with division heads complete. By end of Aug 2021 

 Preliminary budget created and provided to rate consultant. 2nd week of Sep 2021 

 Preliminary budget and rate consultant analysis provided to 
Executive Director, Board Chairperson, and Finance and Audit 
Committee Chairperson. 2nd week of Sep 2021 

 Final revisions to preliminary budget made and preliminary 
budget and proposed changes in rates/fees distributed to Board.  2nd week of Sep 2021 

 Review of preliminary budget.  Any adjustments to preliminary 
budget following work session to be summarized in 
memorandum to Board submitted along with draft budget as 
part of September 2021 Board meeting agenda packet.   

September 2021 
Work Session 

Draft Budget 
 Review of draft budget.  Schedule public hearing for draft 

budget.  Director of Financial Services to distribute final draft 
budget to Board and Secretary with memorandum summarizing 
any changes within 36 hours after the September 2021 Board 
meeting.  This draft shall be made available for public 
inspection online, at Water Board’s administrative offices, and 
at City libraries.  

September 2021 
Business Meeting 

 Public hearing on draft budget.  Any further amendments to be 
by resolution. 

October 2021 Work 
Session 

 Resolutions for amendments, if any.  Anticipated adoption of 
2022 budget, rates, and fees. 

October 2021 
Business Meeting 

Adopted Budget 
 Posted to Website Within three days 

after adoption. 
 Regulatory filing for rates to be effective January 1, 2022. December 31, 2021 



Page 2 of 2

Annual Audit – Deadline for Distribution to Board of Directors One Week Prior to 
March 2021 Work 
Session 

PARIS Reports – Drafts or Information to be Included in Reports 
Submitted for Board Approval 

 Audit Report (Filing Deadline April 1) March 2021 Business 
Meeting 

 Procurement Report (Filing Deadline April 1) March 2021 Business 
Meeting 

 Investment Report (Filing Deadline April 1) March 2021 Business 
Meeting 

 Budget Report (Filing Deadline November 1) October 2021 Work 
Session 

 Annual Report (Filing Deadline November 1) October 2021 Work 
Session 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 1 of 15 

 
 
 

Monthly O&M Report 
For the Month of November 2020 

 

1. Treatment & Plant Maintenance 

1.1. Water  Robert Rowe, updated 12/01/2020 

 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

 
 Total water production for the month of November was 651 million gallons.  The average daily 
water production was 21.7 million gallons.  The plant data summary table is included below for your 
reference. 
 

  2020 TOTALS AND AVERAGES   

        

  PRE    POST F/W  

 F/W CL2 PACL H2SiF6 PO4 CL2 1000 

 PUMPAGE LBS LBS LBS LBS LBS 
GAL/ 
DAY 

JAN 691945 7205 131000 16189 1891 4034 22321 
FEB 666612 6664 122800 15907 1846 4169 22987 
MAR 731884 7609 131400 17442 2053 4478 23609 
APR 725504 8039 135500 17675 2121 4428 24183 
MAY 738265 8462 130200 18122 2099 4565 23815 
JUN 657717 8481 129100 16749 1755 4280 21924 
JUL 689194 9709 158000 17736 1912 4492 22232 
AUG 689025 10707 156100 18731 1949 3798 22227 
SEP 656138 9352 139100 16674 1883 3643 21871 
OCT 673130 8665 140100 17134 1910 3389 21714 
NOV 651,028 8449 140100 16533 1802 3160 21701 
DEC        
TOTAL 7570442 93342 1513400 188892 21221 44436 248584 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 2 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  2020 ANALYTICAL RESULTS    

        

 RAW  PRE POST EFF   

 TURB RAW Cl2 Cl2 TURB EFF F. RES 

 NTU pH RES.mg/l RES.mg/l NTU pH mg/l 
JAN 13.8 8.1 0.58 1.21 0.022 7.6 0.68 
FEB 8.5 8.1 0.55 1.21 0.015 7.6 0.69 
MAR 10.5 8.1 0.55 1.22 0.022 7.6 0.69 
APR 6.7 8.1 0.55 1.22 0.019 7.7 0.68 
MAY 2.4 8.1 0.56 1.23 0.023 7.7 0.67 
JUN 1.3 8.0 0.54 1.23 0.019 7.6 0.68 
JUL 4.2 8.1 0.51 1.24 0.017 7.6 0.66 
AUG 1.5 8.1 0.64 1.24 0.023 7.6 0.68 
SEP 0.9 8.1 0.63 1.23 0.026 7.6 0.67 
OCT 1.8 8.1 0.66 1.22 0.020 7.7 0.67 
NOV 8.3 8.0 0.68 1.22 0.025 7.6 0.67 
DEC        
AVG 5.4 8.1 0.59 1.22 0.021 7.6 0.68 

 
 
 
Operations and Maintenance Highlights  
 

The need for a booster pump system to aid and back-up our Chlorine dosing into 
the raw water has been discussed and has become more evident.  We have started 
the process of sourcing equipment and drawing up plans.  
 
 We are replacing the outdated Chlorine Detection System in our chlorine area 
due to lack of support and parts.  The unit is currently working but becoming 
problematic. New units have been ordered and will be installed once on site. New Unit 
has been received and we are working on scheduling the install.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 3 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
1.2. Wastewater  Bob Dunn, Chief Operator- updated 12/1/2020 

Non-Compliance Violations: NONE 

Sampling notes: Currently unavailable

OPERATIONAL and MAINTENANCE- Highlights  

Project #6 (Disinfection) continues to be problematic. Minor setbacks and lack of 
clear communication before electrical maintenance has hampered progress. Dr. 
Goeddertz was quarantined due to possible Covid-19 exposure and Mr. Tudini 
has offered his services to help guide the project along. 

Both sides of the wet wells at the facility have been cleaned by Nation Vacuum. 
The scum building is being handled in house by the Outside Water and Sewer 
Personnel at considerable savings. Winterization of outside equipment has 
begun with special attention being paid to the Sediment Basins and their specific 

repairs were enacted on screws and mountings as quickly as parts could be 
obtained. 

Operations and Maintenance Personnel were given Chemical Handling Training 
by Ms. Senia, who has since left the WWTP for a new position. We wish her well 
in her future adventures. We have been advised that there may be changes in 
scheduling due to increased Covid-19 cases in the state, but so far are 
continuing our normal routines.  

Mr. Argona has started replacing the filters in the plant with new more efficient 
ones. He has also purchased air filtration units to hopefully assist in the reduction 
of airborne particles. The conference room has temporarily been moved to the 
WWTP Lobby to minimize exposure and allow for distance due to the pandemic. 

The plant is in good shape, with repairs completed as soon as the need is 
identified. Operations personnel were reminded to be physically checking 
equipment while on shift. Better communication between all parties has been 
stressed to facilitate less hiccups when power is required to be interrupted.  

 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 4 of 15 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Explanation of data abbreviations: 
INF: Influent       BFP: Belt Filter Press 
EFF: Effluent       PRIM: Primary 
CBE Carbon Bed Effluent     FeC13: Ferric Chloride 
GPS: Gorge Pump Station     H2O2: Peroxide 
MGD: Millions of Gallons per Day    NaOCl: Sodium Hypochlorite 
PPM: Parts Per Million 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 5 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Pipes: 
 
2.1. Sewer Collection  Michael Eagler, updated 12/1/2020 

2020 S
er

vi
ce

 
C

al
ls

F
lu

sh
in

g
 

(F
ee

t)

U
F

P
O

 
R

es
po

ns
es

R
ec

ei
ve

rs
 

C
le

an
ed

B
yp

as
s 

P
u

m
p

in
g

 
(H

ou
rs

)

C
at

ch
 

B
as

in
s

M
an

  
H

o
le

s

M
ai

n

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

s

L
at

er
al

January 92 22860 165 128 112.30 2 1 0 0 0
February 39 11760 185 103 0.00 0 3 0 0 0
March 72 644 181 38 17.99 6 3 0 0 1
April 60 433 199 0 9.73 0 0 0 1 0
May 81 13810 373 326 0.00 1 4 0 0 0
June 100 21195 370 270 5.01 8 5 2 2 2
July 99 23513 423 177 0.00 3 2 5 5 5
August 104 47458 981 205 3.60 3 8 1 7 2
September 139 51416 881 238 6.50 4 1 8 4 0
October 96 54573 852 188 0.00 6 6 1 0 0
November 84 36828 570 152 3.00 8 3 1 2 2
December
Totals          

Sewer Collections System

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 6 of 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2   Water Distribution  Michael Eagler, updated 12/1/2020 

 

2020 M
ai

n
 

B
re

ak
s

S
er

vi
ce

 
L

ea
ks

C
u

rb
 B

o
x 

R
es

et

V
al

ve
 

R
ep

ai
re

d

V
al

ve
 

R
ep

la
ce

d

H
yd

ra
n

t 
R

ep
la

ce
d

H
yd

ra
n

t 
R

ep
ai

re
d

H
yd

ra
n

t 
F

lo
w

H
yd

ra
n

t F
lu

sh
- 

W
in

te
ri

ze
d

H
yd

ra
n

t 
L

ea
ks

H
yd

ra
n

ts
   

 
o

u
t o

f 
S

er
vi

ce

M
is

c.
   

 
S

er
vi

c
e 

   
C

al
ls

January 4 10 2 0 0 10 4 0 258 0 1 92
February 2 8 3 0 1 16 0 0 264 0 0 39
March 2 11 3 2 1 12 4 0 230 0 0 72
April 2 3 9 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 0 60
May 4 10 7 0 0 13 1 0 64 0 0 81
June 5 12 46 3 1 5 0 58 260 0 0 100
July 10 10 9 5 4 7 1 136 158 0 0 99
August 4 16 3 1 0 5 1 102 148 0 0 104
September 9 9 5 0 2 4 1 159 175 0 0 139
October 2 6 6 0 0 12 3 118 218 0 0 96
November 4 4 5 0 0 2 3 20 202 0 0 84
December
Totals 48 99 98 11 9 94 19 593 1977 0 1 966

Water Distribution

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 7 of 15 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Analytical Services 

3.1  Water Laboratory Larry Sklarski, updated 11/05/2020 

1.  New York State Sanitary Code Part V Monitoring/Reporting 
-October samples have been collected & analyzed in-house for TOC, DOC & UV254 on both 
finished and source water, all samples were in compliance. 
-Monthly collection and reporting for the Distribution System was conducted (60 Samples for Free 
Chlorine, Turbidity, Phosphate, Fluoride, Standard Plate Count & Mf Coliform). All samples were 
within reporting limits. 
-We have been in contact with the LPHD during the shutdown due to the Coronavirus.  Alternate 
sampling sites were approved for routine monitoring. Only one site remains closed as of this date.  
-NYSDOH has decided to add three new compounds to their list of Organic Chemicals, 1,4-
Dioxane, Perflorooctanesulfonicacid (PFOS) and Perflorooctanoic acdi (PFOA).  These 
compounds will need to be monitored once per quarter for one year and if not detected will go on 
to a 18 month sampling rotation with the other organics. The first round of sampling tested all 
non-detected.  

                                   
2.  In-house/DEC/LPHD Monitoring 

-All in-house monitoring for bacteriology and water chemistry have been within normal limits.   
-The monthly SPDES sample collected from the freeze thaw bed was within normal limits.  
-Samples analyzed for 2020: 14,156. 
-No water main breaks were sampled in October. One community complaint was sampled due to 
high turbidity, three complaints were able to be resolved without sampling. 
-Third Qtr. UCMR4 samples were collected in August but have not been posted on CDX for 
approval. The final round of sampling for this program will occur in November. 
-
yearly POC results and UCMR4 results.  No excursions were observed in any of the tests.  
 

3.  Laboratory Concerns 
 - The Laboratory analyzed a total of 57 samples for Niagara & Erie County Water Plants and the 
Aquarium, of which 21 samples were analyzed by the microbiology lab.     
-2020 Revenue created is ~$37,257.50, the unknown is due to overlapping billing in months. 
-Lead and Copper samples from Niagara and Orleans County have been reported. The Starpoint 
School District has delivered 361 samples for Lead analysis of which ~50% have been analyzed 
to date. 
-Sampling has been completed for Distribution Lead & Copper Monitoring throughout the city. 
Results indicate we are within the 90th percentile limit, the report still needs to be complied and 
filed. 
 
 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 8 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
-Proficiency testing has restarted by NYS Environmental Laboratory Approval Program.  
Bacteriology samples were tested and submitted; all thirteen samples passed.  Potable Water 
Wet Chemistry samples were analyzed and submitted, results will be received in November. 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
3.2 Wastewater Laboratory - Brian Eldridge 11/30/2020 
 
 

1. 
currently being compiled with no anticipated violations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 9 of 15 

 
 
 
 
4. Customers & Compliance 
 
4.1. Meter Shop  Bob Reid Updated 12/2/20 

Shop read 5264 residential meters for the month.  

 

 

 

 

  MONTH: WORK STOPPED Registers SCRAPPED INDUSTRIAL RESIDENTIAL 
  ORDERS METERS Replaced METERS METERS METERS 
          READ READ 
JANUARY 105 0 4 0 0 7185 

FEBRUARY 86 0 7 0 0 
                   
             5261 

MARCH 76 0 6 0 565 5484 
APRIL 68 0 3 0 0 7191 
MAY 76 0 8 0 0 5256 
JUNE 91 2 5 0 565 5480 
JULY               98                      4 8 0 0 7191 
AUGUST 94 12 6 0 0 5255 
SEPTEMBER 134 5 11 0 565 5486 
OCTOBER 132 7 13 0 0 7192 
NOVEMBER 107 2 14                    0              0 5264 
DECEMBER                          
TOTAL 1067                    32                85 0                 1695 66245 
         
METER READINGS:        
 DISTRICT 3 B.REID M.MACRI V.Virtuoso J.PAUL F.DERUBEIS TOTAL 
             

       
             11/2/20 1362                                              1611                                           2973 

11/3/20           961                                                            526                1487 

                                
 
                   

11/4/20 417                                                      341                  758 
11/5/20                    46                   46 

                                                  
                                            
             
                        
                                       

TOTAL 2740                2478 46                 5264 
       



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 10 of 15 

 

 

 

4.2. Industrial Monitoring / Enforcement  Joel Paradise updated 11/30/20 

 

a.)  Hauled Waste Program  The Hauled waste moratorium imposed on August 16th, 2017 is 
 still in effect.   

    b.)  Investigations/Enforcement  All inspections have been conducted and Notices of 
 Violation have been issued as required.   

c.)  SIU Updates.  
1. All SIU (Significant Industrial User) whose discharge permits nearing expiration in the next several 

months have been sent their renewal applications for our review and eventual reissuance of their 
NFWB wastewater discharge permit. This is an ongoing and continuing process. 
The Cross Connection Inspectors work of conducting his inspections as a function of building 
sales, monitoring the annual tests results of all back flow prevention devices , along with updating 
our database and filing/archiving the hard copies has also been impacted by the Covid-19 
situation but they are being conducted and nearly back on schedule. 

2. SIU discharge permits are being continually updated using the most recent data generated by      
      Steve Stewart to verify / adjust discharge limits. The format is being updated simultaneously.  
3.   Administrative Order on Consent June 26th, 202 issued to SIU #50- Cascades Containerboard 
      Packaging as a result of a major pretreatment operational upset earlier this year has not been  
      officially lifted. They are in compliance with their discharge permit for the most part, but they are  
      working out some fairly minor operational kinks. Continuous discharge permit compliance  
      notwithstanding, all other terms and conditions listed in the Administrative Order were met.      
      Update  11/3/2020: An offshoot of this situation was a meeting with Cascades officials to discuss        
      their proposed request for an increase in their allocation for TSS and SOC. Their justification for          
      the proposal is a steady increase in the rate of production that has occurred during the past  
      several years. On 11/13/2020 the Cascades Containerboard Pkg. Niagara and Greenpac Mill,        
      LLC discharge permits were modified increasing their TSS and SOC limits.  
4.  The RFP for the Local Limits re-evaluation is, I assume, still nearing completion.   
5.   Renewed discharge permits will be issued for Cecos International Inc.on 12/6/2020, DS Rose Inc.     
      on 12/8/2020 and Sherwood Forest Properties, LTD on 12/18/2020. Discharge permit renewal       
      applications for SIU #47, Saint Gobain Advanced Ceramics and ICU #80 Plastic2Oil were  
     sent out, both are due to expire in early 2021. 
6.  BHC and PCB sampling in the collection system was completed on Tuesday, November 10th,  
     2020.  
7.  round of Mercury sampling in the collection system was initially postponed then      
     rescheduled and conducted on October 13, 2020. 
 
 
 
 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 11 of 15 

 
 
 
 
5. Support Services 

5.1. Safety  Gina Senia, updated 11/5/20 

Safety Performance (October 2020): 
The NFWB reported zero OSHA/PESH recordable injuries and zero first aid incidents during the 
month of October. Our Injury Frequency Rate is 2.3 for Total Recordable Injuries and 0 for Lost 
Workday Cases: 
 

MONTHLY SAFETY 
PERFORMANCE: 

October 
YEAR TO DATE 
SAFETY 
PERFORMANCE: 

YEAR TO DATE 
INJURY 
FREQUENCY RATE: 

OSHA/PESH Recordable LWDC 0 0 0 
OSHA/PESH Recordable Injuries 0 2 2.3 
Man Hours Worked (est.) 16,575 171,510 - 
First Aid Cases 0 - - 

 
2020 GOALS  

OSHA/PESH LWDC   0    
TOTAL OSHA/PESH Recordables 0    
INJURY FREQUENCY RATE 0    

 
Summary of Recordable and Recordable LWDC Injuries (October 2020): 0 
 
Summary of First Aid Incidents (October 2020): 0 
 
Summary of Other Incidents (October 2020): 0 
 
Safety Activities and Updates (October 2020):     
 
COVID Safety  our COVID Safety Plan was updated to reflect our current health screening 
protocol for employees and contractors/visitors. We also provided guidelines and instructions on 
how to proceed during various exposure scenarios and included the updated CDC definition of 
aintain our stock of PPE, sanitizers and cleaning agents, and 
continue to monitor developments from the CDC, State and local NCDOH.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 12 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
Workplace Violence Prevention  Approximately 75% of NFWB employees received WPV 
Prevention training in October; due to COVID restrictions much of the training is being conducted 
in small groups and the remaining employees are expected to complete the training by the end of 
November. All employees were provided the employee survey results. Additionally, a 
representative from Northpointe Council (employee assistance provider) was available during 
some of the training classes and provided information regarding their services to employees and 
their families. 
 
A total of 13 NFWB Operations employees attended Bulk Chemical Offloading Safety training in 
October that included function-specific DOT training. The training included proper chemical 
identification, proper shipping name (for bill of lading), placarding, PPE and spill prevention. 
Employees reviewed the checklist for safe offloading including ensuring delivery to the proper 
tank, available tank capacity, proper hose hookup, and general communication with the driver. We 
also reviewed the chemical incompatibilities chart. Additional training for the remaining Operations 
employees will occur in November.  
 
Shoring Equipment Demonstration  a hands-on demonstration using our new shoring 
The C&D team had favorable 
comments regarding the equipment and potentially may order additional shores. 
 
It has been my extreme pleasure serving as the NFWB Safety Specialist during the past 4.5 
years. I wish all good health and continued success! 
 

6.  Technical Services  Doug Williamson, updated 11/30/20 

1. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program HMGP Project No.4204-0003: 
In November, GHD continued investigating WWTP flood control projects of a smaller 
magnitude that may have a better benefit to cost ratio than the current scope of work and 
may still be fundable through the FEMA grant.  A conference call was held on November 
6th. 

2. Schoellkopf Tunnel Surcharge: 
Ongoing measurements and review of data at shaft #1 and #2 reveal no unusual behavior.  

3. LaSalle SSO Abatement Program and Consent Order (R9-20080528-32): 
The final Sanitary Sewer System Management Plan Year 12 Progress Evaluation 
engineering report was submitted to the NYSDEC on September 11th and continues to be 
reviewed.  The draft LaSalle Sanitary Sewer System Improvements Engineering Report 
was received on November 11th.  In November, we continued discussions regarding 
potential revisions to the LaSalle consent order, potential 2020 WQIP and EPG grant 
applications and the projects in the engineering report to be submitted.   

4. NYSDEC Consent Order (R9-20170906-129) WWTP Phase I and II Projects: 
In November, we continued to support CPL and the design consultants on the WWTP 
Phase I and II projects.  Project 1 Sedimentation Basins and Scum Collection System 
Modification pre-construction meeting was held on November 24 th.  Project 2 GPS 
Rehabilitation and Project 6 Effluent Disinfection work are ongoing.  Project 5 Electrical  



 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 13 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
Phase II 50% design drawings were received on November 23rd. Project 7 Replacement of 
Critical Heating and Ventilation Equipment meeting was held on November 6 th.  Project 9 
Process Piping Improvements progress meeting was held on November 10 th. 

5. NYSDEC WWTP SPDES Permit NY0026336 and Consent Order (R9-20170906-129) 
Items: 
In November, we continued to address the WWTP SPDES Permit NY0026336 and 
Consent Order (R9-20170906-129) items.  The WWTP chlorine dioxide study was 
approved by the NYSDEC on August 27th 
planned to start in the summer of 2021.  

6. WWTP and Chemical Bulk Storage Tanks: 
We received a second Notice of Violation from the NYSDEC for the WWTP Chemical Bulk 
Storage (CBS) Program on November 5th.  The corrective actions will be provided to the 
Region 9 office by December 7th.  RFP 2020-04 Design Report for Improvements in WWTP 
Processing, Handling and Disposal of Sludge pre-proposal information session was held on 
November 24th. 

7. Town of Niagara Sewer Flow Monitoring 
The Fall of 2020 Town of Niagara sewer flow monitoring (4-week period) began on 
September 21st and was completed on October 19th, 2020.  The 2021 Town of Niagara 
sanitary sewer services charges were drafted based on the average of the 2020 Spring and 
Fall flow data.    

8. Engineering Support 
In November, the engineering department continued to provide engineering and GIS 
support to NFWB departments, engineering consultants and developers as needed. 

9. Capital Improvement Projects: 
In November, the 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan and projects continued to be 
evaluated, updated and reviewed as needed with NFWB staff. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

O&M Report  December 3, 2020 Page 15 of 15 

 

 

 

 

8. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (I.T.) Joe Morock 11/13/2020 

VMWARE  Sean F & Joe M. We are working on the VM migration, Version 5 to 7 we expect this to 
wrap up around December.
 
Network Final Phase  Sean F & Joe M - WTP/WWTP Switches & Routers (25 total) are being 
firmware updated and secured with local admin accounts, configured, and backed up.We expect this 
phase to be completed by the 3rd-4th week of November. 
 
We will then begin configuring the IP/Sub/GW and VLANs of every network device, when completed 
and tested we will schedule an afterhours deployment as this will bring down the existing network for 
as we swap out the old equipment, The same strategy will be followed for at WWTP. 
 
Network  Wi-Fi  Sean F & Dino  Joe - When the wtp/wwtp network is complete, we will be adding 
Wi-Fi to both plants in the form of a secured production and secured Guest Wi-Fi network. Utilizing 
-Fi coverage. We 
will begin this in late December. 
 

New World  Joe M - Pre-Configured Cisco ASA VPN arrived, we then Integrated it onto our existing 
Firewall/Network, this device will create an encrypted tunnel between us and the NW Cloud Hosted 
environment. However, it does not seem to be working so we immediately notified New world technical to 
further troubleshoot this. 

GPS  Carl/Bill - All units have been working as intended since installed, 

experienced a 

units have been ordered and installed. 

Security Card system  Gina/Carl reached out to Fox Fence to Install/Reuse Access Control Equipment at 
Wastewater and Water Treatment Plants. Being a security project, this should be headed by Security we will 
assist in any way. 

  We had our account rep Quit, DSS just recently replaced this individual, we are 
attempting to setup a meeting with him to discuss the current plans and to go over the layout and requirements 
necessary to complete the project.  



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2020-12-001 

2021 WATER BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board has, by past practice, approved the schedule 
for the work sessions and the regular meetings by resolution prior to the next year of operation; 
and     

WHEREAS, the Water Board must schedule an annual meeting pursuant to Article V, 
Section 1 of its By-Laws; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the calendar of work sessions, business meetings, and the annual 
meeting that is attached hereto is hereby adopted by the Niagara Falls Water Board for 2021. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 
General Counsel and Secretary 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable. 

On December 14, 2020, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairperson Brown [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Patrick D. Brown, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 





www.nfwb.org 

 

 

  











  





 











 

  

 

  



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2020-12-002 

ANNUAL REVIEW OF PROCUREMENT POLICY  
AND ADOPTION OF REVISED POLICY 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) is required by Public 
Authorities Law § 2824(1)(e) to adopt written policies and procedures for the procurement of 
goods and services; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board annually reviews its procurement policy; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board has identified certain desirable revisions and 
improvements to the procurement policy; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby adopts the procurement policy 
with a revision date of December 14, 2020, to be effective immediately. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 
Director of Financial Services 
General Counsel and Secretary 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable. 

On December 14, 2020, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairperson Brown [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Patrick D. Brown, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 























































 






























































 






























 






























 




 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 



 














 





 



 





 

 






 














 















 






 



 



 





 







 





 



 


 



















 







 




 








 




 




 




 





















 







 





 




 







 

 














 




 


 

















 









 























 











 


 


 


 






 



















































 











































 






















 































 

































 




 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 




 









 
 

 

 

 








 
 

 

 







 

 









 
























 










 






 



 



 


 




 







 
















 



 


 














 







 




 








 










 




 




 















 







 





 









 







 

 








 




 


 

















 














 


















 











 


 


 


 


















Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2020-12-003 

CHANGE ORDER 1 AND FINAL FOR 24 INCH VALVE REPLACEMENT  
AT HYDE PARK BOULEVARD AND WESTON AVENUE 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) identified a need to replace 
a 24-inch water main valve at Hyde Park Boulevard and Weston Avenue, on behalf of the 
Water Board, the City of Niagara Falls Engineering Department prepared specifications and 
solicited bids for the valve replacement, and the Water Board awarded the bid to low bidder 
Pinto Construction Services, Inc., with a total base bid item price of $38,503; and  

WHEREAS, on excavating and removing the vault around the valve, previously 
unknown subterranean conditions, particularly the location of existing pipe joints, required 
removal of additional pipe and corresponding increases in the size of the excavation necessary to 
complete the project; and 

WHEREAS, the additional excavation required more pavement restoration than called 
for in the original bid specifications and an additional $4,800 in stone and related asphalt 
products to complete the necessary scope of work; and 

WHEREAS, City Engineering recommends that the contract for the 24-inch water main 
valve replacement at Hyde Park Boulevard and Weston Avenue be amended to reflect the 
additional work and to provide for payment of the additional costs associated with the project; 
and 

WHEREAS, the necessary work now is complete and this contract amendment will be 
accomplished through the one and final change order for the contract; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to execute a change order one and final to amend the contract with 
Pinto Construction Services, Inc., for the replacement of a 24-inch water main valve at 
Hyde Park Boulevard and Weston Avenue, and the Water Board authorizes payment of an 
$4,800 for the contract, bringing the contract total to $43,303. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
Capital Plan Item W-3, Large Valve Replacement 
Capital Line Supplied by: D. Williamson 
Available Funds Confirmed by: K. Walker 

On December 14, 2020, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairperson Brown [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Patrick D. Brown, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 





NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2020-12-004 

ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) issued a Request for 
Proposals (“RFP”) for annual audit services; and 

WHEREAS, four firms submitted proposals in response to the RFP; and 

WHEREAS, after completing a thorough review and evaluation of the proposals, the 
Water Board has determined that the best interests of the Water Board will be served by selection 
of the proposal by _____________________________________; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its 
Executive Director be and hereby is authorized to execute an agreement with 
_____________________________________ to perform annual audit services for the year 
ending December 31, 2020, for a total fee not to exceed $___________. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 
Director of Financial Services 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
FGB 8000.000.0459.000 (Auditors) 
Budget Line Supplied by:  K . Walker 
Additional Funds confirmed by: K. Walker. 

On December 14, 2020, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairperson Brown [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Patrick D. Brown, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2020-12-005 

RESIGNATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PATRICK FAMA 

WHEREAS, on December 9, 2020 Executive Director Patrick Fama submitted a written 
request to resign as Executive Director in order to return from a leave permitted under his 
employment contract to his last permanent Civil Service position of Lab Technician and his 
provisional appointment as Microbiologist; and 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) thanks Mr. Fama for his 
service as Executive Director and wishes to restore him to his prior position and provisional 
appointment;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby accepts Patrick Fama’s 
resignation as Executive Director; and it is further 

RESOLVED, that Patrick Fama’s return from a leave of absence to his last permanent 
Civil Service position of Lab Technician hereby is approved; and it is further 

RESOLVED, that the Water Board hereby approves of Patrick Fama’s provisional 
appointment as Microbiologist subject to Civil Service Rules; and it is further 

RESOLVED, that General Counsel Sean W. Costello hereby is appointed 
Acting Executive Director; and it is further  

RESOLVED, that all of the foregoing actions shall be effective immediately. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
General Counsel 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
Per appropriate payroll lines; net reduction in payroll expense. 

On December 14, 2020, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairperson Brown [       ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Patrick D. Brown, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 




